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Federal M ne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conmm ssi on
O fice of Adm nistrative Law Judges

SECRETARY OF LABOR Cvil Penalty Proceedi ngs
PETI TI ONER
V. Docket No. WEVA 80-516
AC No. 46-01436- 03094
CONSCLI DATI ON COAL COWVPANY
RESPONDENT Docket No. WEVA 80-517
AC No. 46-01436- 03095

DECI SI ON

These cases were brought by the Secretary of Labor under
section 110 of the Federal M ne Safety and Health Act of 1977, 30
U S.C 0801, et seq., for civil penalties for alleged violations
of safety standards.

The cases were consolidated and heard in Pittsburgh
Pennsyl vani a.

Havi ng consi dered the evidence and contentions of the
parties, | find that the preponderance of the reliable,
probative, and substantial evidence establishes the foll ow ng:

FI NDI NGS OF FACT
1. At all pertinent tines, Respondent operated Shoenaker
m ne, which produced coal for sale or use in or substantially
affecting interstate conmmerce.

The Belt Fire Al arm System

2. On February 25, 1980, Federal |Inspector Edwin Fetty,
acconpani ed by Respondent's Mintenance Foreman, Gary Harvey,
noticed that the nmonitoring light on the belt fire alarm system
inthe tailpiece 3 Left, 4 North, was not on, and tried to test
the system by pushing the test button. This did not produce a
war ni ng si gnal, audible or visual

3. The fire sensor systemruns on AC power. \Wen the AC
power is turned off, the Ni-cd batteries in the control pane
provi de the power to nmonitor the systemfor another 4 hours.
After 4 hours, the systemgoes into a "conservati on node," which
conserves the batteries and nmakes the systeminoperative unti
the AC power is turned on.

VWhen the test was unsuccessful, M. Harvey told Inspector
Fetty that the |likely cause was either that the AC power was not
on or that the dry cell battery in the al armwas dead.
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Neither tested the systemw th the AC power on.

4. The inspector issued citation 627724, chargi ng Conso
with a violation of 30 CFR [075.1103-1 (FOOINOTE 1) and stati ng:

The automatic fire warning device to provide both
audi bl e and vi sual warning when a fire occurs on or
near the No. 2 conveyor belt fromthe 3 Left 4 North
Section tail piece transporting coal to the No. 1
conveyor belt is not maintained in an operative
condition. When the proper test was performed the
device woul d not give an audible or visual warning.

5. The next day, M. Harvey talked to the electrician
assigned to abate the alleged violation and | earned that there
was in fact nothing wong with the system once the power was
turned on. The reason for the negative test was that Fetty and
Harvey had failed to turn on the AC power.

6. Three Left, 4 North Section was idle fromthe day shift
of February 22 until the afternoon of February 27.
Recorded Tests of Methane Monitors

7. On February 25, 1980, Federal Inspector John Phillips
i ssued Citations 813295 and 813296 because 2 nethane nonitors
were not recorded as having been calibrated within 31 days, as
requi red by an MSHA policy nmenmorandumto federal inspectors.
These charged violations of 30 CFR 075.313-1, which provides:

The operator of any mne in which nmethane nonitors are
installed on any equi pnment shall establish and adopt a
definite mai ntenance program designed to keep such

nmoni tors operative and a witten description shall be
avai l abl e for inspection. At |east once each nonth the
nmet hane nmonitors shall be checked for operating
accuracy with a known nethane-air mxture and shall be
calibrated as necessary. A record of calibration tests
shal |l be kept in a book approved by the Secretary.
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Respondent's books reported the last test of the nethane nonitors
on January 5, 1980.

8. On February 25, 1980, Inspector Fetty issued Citation
627721 because a net hane nonitor was not recorded as havi ng been
calibrated within 31 days.

DI SCUSSI ON W TH FURTHER FI NDI NGS
The Belt Fire Al arm System

To establish a violation of 30 CFR O075.1103-1, the
Secretary must prove that the fire alarmsystemdid not operate
when properly tested. The Secretary concedes in his brief that
if the AC power at the belt head had been off for nore than 4
hours, the fire alarm equi pnment could not be properly tested
wi t hout turning on the AC power. The evidence shows that the AC
power had been off for far nore than 4 hours, and that neither
Fetty nor Harvey turned the AC power on to test the fire alarm
system

There is a conflict of testinony as to the reason for the
i nadequate test: The inspector recalled that he asked Harvey to
turn on the AC power and Harvey left to do so, but Harvey
recal l ed that he stayed with the Inspector and was not requested
to turn on the power. | find that the evidence does not
preponderate to resolve this conflict in favor of the inspector's
recol l ection. The government therefore did not neet its burden
of proving a proper test of the fire alarm system

The evi dence indicates that neither |Inspector Fetty nor M.
Harvey real ly understood the way the fire al arm system wor ked at
the tine the citation was witten. Inspector Fetty had never
seen this particular kind of systemuntil February 25, 1980. M.
Harvey was not very famliar with the systemeither, and in his
testinmony relied on discussions with the Electrical Foreman and
on the manufacturer's instruction manual for know edge of the
system

Since Inspector Fetty did not fully understand how the
system wor ked, he wote a citation on a piece of equi pnment that
was in fact operable. M. Harvey did not protest the citation or
show I nspector Fetty that the systemwas in fact in working
condition, because he was not famliar enough with the systemto
recogni ze why it had not responded to the test.

Citations Involving Recorded Tests of Methane Mnitors

These citations charge a violation of 30 CFR 075.313-1
relating to the maintenance of nethane nonitors. The applicable
part of the regulation reads: "(A)t |east once each nonth the
nmet hane nmonitors shall be checked for operating accuracy with a
known mnet hane-air mxture and shall be calibrated as necessary.
A record of calibrated tests shall be kept in a book approved by
the Secretary.”
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The controlling question is whether the phrase "once each nonth"
nmeans each cal endar nonth, as Respondent contends, or once every
31 days, as the Secretary contends.

In MBHA v. CR& Steel Corporation, DENV 76-62-P (June 17,
1977), pp. 4-5, Judge Morehouse decided that the term "nonthly"
in 30 CFR 77.502-2 contai ns an anbi ugity "which, when conbi ned
with the severity of the possible sanction for violation of a
mandatory health and safety standard, fails to satisfy
specificity standards for penalty enforcement.” 1In a sinmlar
case, Judge Mesch dismissed a citation in MSHA v. CF& Steel
Cor poration, DENV 77-43-P, (Novenber 18, 1977), when he found
t hat "weekl y" exam nations neant once a week, and not an interval
of 7 days. Support for these interpretations is found in the
scheme of the regulations. The regulations usually specify when
a period is to be counted in days rather than a cal endar nonth or
week. For example, 30 CFR [075.305-1 specifies that once each
week neans at intervals not to exceed 7 days and 0057.21-65
specifies not nore than 7 days.

I conclude that the phrase "once a month" in 30 CFR 75.313-1
reasonably means once each cal endar nonth. NMSHA's policy
menorandum i s not binding on the operator, and stretches the
meani ng of the regul ati on beyond its plain nmeaning.

The recent holding of the Ninth Grcuit, in Phel ps Dodge
Corporation v. Federal Mne Safety and Heal th Revi ew Conm ssi on
et al., AAAAA F. 2d AAAAA (1982) applies here. There the
court decided that a regul ati on was unenforceable as interpreted
by MSHA because:

The regul ati on i nadequately expresses an intention to
reach the activities to which MSHRC applied it.
Therefore, we join in the observation: "If a violation
of a regul ation subjects private parties to crimnal or
civil sanctions, a regulation cannot be construed to
mean what an agency intended but did not adequately
express."” (citations omtted). D anond Roofing Co.
Inc. v. Cccupational Safety and Health Revi ew
Conmi ssion, 528 F. 2d 645, 649 (5th Cr. 1976).

The facts show that the nmethane nonitors were tested on
January 5, 1980, and the citations were issued February 25, 1980.
Respondent still had 4 days to conply with the standard. In
fact, before the end of February, the tests were nmade and
recorded in Respondent's books. There was no violation

Accordingly, the regul ation cannot serve as the basis for
i ssuance of the citation or for the levy of the fine.

CONCLUSI ONS OF LAW

1. The Conmi ssion has jurisdiction over the parties and
subj ect matter of this proceeding.
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2. As to each of the citations involved, the Secretary failed to
prove a violation.

Proposed findi ngs and concl usions inconsistent with the
above are rejected.

WHEREFORE I T IS ORDERED that this proceeding is DI SM SSED

WLLI AM FAUVER
JUDGE

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAA
~FOOTNOTE_ONE
1 Section 0O75.1103-1 provides:

A fire sensor systemshall be installed on each
underground belt conveyor. Sensors so installed shall be of a
type which will (a) give warning automatically when a fire occurs
on or near such belt; (b) provide both audi bl e and visual signals
that permt rapid location of the fire.



